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WASHINGTON
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MEMORANDUM FOR: THE PRESIDENT

FROM: = = ~ HENRY A. KISSINGER K

SUBJECT: e Ambassador Godley's Report on Visit by i

iR Congressmen McCloskey and Waldie to !
Vientiane

We have received the attached backchannels from Godley on the McCloskey/
Waldie visit to Vientiane April 13-15. It was a somewhat unusual Congres-
sional mission and it ended on a rather tense note. The following are the
main points which you should be aware of.

April 13 e ’ SAN
EEReRT T : n : " Per Sec. 3. x(b)(\)(e);h. T-30

-- Godley received them well and gave them a straightforward briefing
on our activities there, including acknowledgment that about 200—

s s

-- In a 45-minute meeting with Souvanna Phouma the Prime Minister
emphasized the necessity of continued and increased American military
assistance, but made clear he was not seeking personnel. He also stated
~ that the Lao could continue the war without the CIA,

In response to a question he said that Laos could not
continue to exist if the Vietnamese got together and he referred McCloskey
to Ho Chi Minh's ambition to control all of former French Indochina. He
empha31zed Hanoi's control of the Pathet Lao and described his half-brother
as a frontman :

-- At a dinner in their honor and attended by senior embassy personnel,
the Congressmen pressed their argument that American bombing was the
principal reason for Laotian refugees. This was denied in varying degrees
by those present and Godley emphasized that the hardships caused by the
. Pathet Lao and the imposition of a Communist regime were equally important

. reasons. In response to questions, Godley did not deny the B-52 raids up
,north_ He made clear, however, that
this information was classified Top Secret, and both Congressmen agreed to
re spect thls clas s1f1cat1on
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April 14

-- On a number of occasions throughout the visit, McCloskey became
rather emotional and upset about the refugee-bombing question. He demanded
to see the raw material and interviews with refugees used to make a report
he had seen in Washington. (This was promised and eventually produced but
not as promptly as he had demanded.) He charged that Embas sy personnel '
were misleading him and that he should have been given the material immedi- ¢
ately upon his arrival. In a rather agitated state McCloskey canceled his :
scheduled trip to visit refugees on the Vientiane Plain, moved out of the -

Embassy and said he was going to study the report material and would visit
the villages covered in the report the next day.

-- Godley explained that the material had no official status and repre-
sented interviews with only 300 out of 260,000 refugees, that bombing was
only one of the factors and that he didn't accept the reports as conclusive.

He emphasized a number of times that it was not our policy to bomb villages.

hme e e s

-- Waldie said he regretted McCloskey's making an issue of the report
materials and said his own views of our policy there had changed for the
better. McCloskey said his eyes had been opened and he was not convinced
that our policy was bad. «

-- Both Congressmen met with the press, ostensibly to elicit their
views on refugees, buat it is likely that some of the above will come out.

April 15

-- On the 15th, both Congressmen visited a refugee village on the Vien-
tiane Plain for three and one-half hours and interviewed 8 refugees each.
They claimed that each of the refugees interviewed had said that the bombing
of his village had been the factor in his becoming a refugee. The refugees
admitted, however, that enemy installations in most cases were within two

to eleven kilometers of their homes. The Congressmen also said that they
were impressed with the fact that casualties were extremely light. Both

had strong praise for the AID refugee program.

-- At an informal news conference McCloskey said that through '68
and into '69 it was a conscious policy of the USG to bomb villages and that -
the U.S. Ambassador had deliberately ordered or sanctioned such bombings.
He claimed that all the refugees came out because of the bombing and he
criticized the Embassy for not giving him its bombing surveys, etc., alleging
that he had been lied to about the existence of such materials. He also claimed
that you had withheld similar information in your May 1970 speech and he
contended that Congress had been deliberately misled.
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-- Godley later asked the Congressmen if they thought he was
authorizing the bombing of villages inhabited by civilians. McCloskey
said he assumed that such actions had been authorized by Godley, but he
denied that he was accusing Godley of being a liar. In the end, McCloskey
agreed to accept the fact that it was not U.S. Government policy to bomb
inhabited villages.

. -- McCloskey closed with a personal attack on Godley's DCM, accusing
~him of willfully misleading the Congressmen and withholding information.
Godley replied with a strong statement of his complete confldence in his
DCM's 1ntegr1ty :

I have just received an additional backchannel from Godley giving a post-
_visit assessment. In brief, his conclusion is that the Congressmen came
simply to re-enforce their preconceptions and were bent on a con_frontatmn,
Whlch in splte of h1s best efforts he was unable to av01d

Attachments» ' =

23
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, YTO:"' l _General H‘aig,, The Wh'iee.Hous'e
FROM:._:I. _“mbassador Godley, V1ent1ane 200'
SUBJECi_‘-- McCloskey/Waldle CODEL .
1 Mcbloskey/Waldle armved V1ent1ane approx1mate1y 1545 yesterday.
VEn" route here they had several hours at Udorn where Major General Evans,
beputy C"c'»n{fnandez_‘ 7/13th and his staff brviefed the Congressmen (the rest
of the sui’ee arrived Vientiane ohiy 1100 this moreing). on ei‘r sufport‘in ‘ i

northern Laos. General Evans report is being forwarded separately through

military channels. ik ;
: forSee .3 S3EMG); pL Bo-TC
4. 3/&[20v0

o recelved the Congressmen upon their arrival in my office and ;

with AID Director briefed them on recent Lao history and the current military

situation. I acknowledged that

of my admiration for the way the CIA was conducting itself and indicated my

prefere'nee for CIA‘opera_,ting here rather»than US ground forces. I mentioned
that CIA personnel involved 1n this work— Durihg :
i:his cenversafion. C‘onglv'es‘smen were most affeiale,' .even nearly unctuous. They
were, ‘ho.wever, extrer;nely 'upsket over what they alleged to have been the
treatment aecorded them in Vietnam where they allege an FSO-1 had lied to them
about CIA pe5rsonne1. T.hey inquired into the Mission g'uafd service and ‘ |

: asked i,f'thiAs‘was a CIA operatien. AID Director Mann, who was with me

' during the -__cohversation, explained in considerable detail the Mission guard

b
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; .serv_lce. Thelr susp1c1on ev1dent1y by the fact that a former maﬁne
‘as sociate of v‘Congres sman McCloskey'e, .who had been a marine intelligenée‘,
officer, *41:9‘& lx_-eaa‘s’-_the .Mivs sioh ‘guard"s‘efvice.

v 3, Atflve o'clock we were ”receivedi b‘vy.»the Prime_Minist_er for
f‘orty--f.ive mgnutes. | Thevconversatvionv was 'extremeiy pleasant ahd when‘ asked
if Lheféj{%re an'sr Thai forces 111 Laos; the Pfixne Minister said that there - ;

might be.some Thai of Lao ethnic origin currehtly serving in the irregular forces

here. This led him to discuss at length the ethnic Lao living in ‘Thailand, whom

-

he said‘;;.l_omberv twentybrepeet twenty million. The Congressmen asked whom

- -~~-thewP—r«imo-Ministe'r--thooght they should see-in this country and he suggested

the North Vletnamese POW‘s, Lao off101a,ls and any llttle Lao they could speak

st 5.

with. The Prime Minister descrlbed for the Congressmen American assistance

from 1952 on and spoke of the nece331ty for our continued and increased SAN"IZ
?ev&c 3. gés)(l)(s
B “rﬂf.

m111tary ass1tance Jbut emphas1zed that he was not seeking American personnel
Congre‘ssman ’McCIOSkey asked if CIA were to be withdrawn could the Lao

: con’cinu'ev{:he‘ war. The Prime Minister without hesitation saide"Yes,-

asked the Prime Minister if all American troops were withdrawn from South

Vietnam and the Vietnamese got together whether Laos could continue to exist.

-
3

The Prime lMinieter with considerable emphasis said it could not and referred .
the Congr.e;ssfnen to Ho Ch1 ‘Mi‘»nh's ambition to control all of former French
AIn,doéhin'a. _‘.'I'here was convsidel;able discussion of the 'Pathet Leo. The Prime
Miniséevr :oee'ol;ibed his half brother as a front and Kaysorne as the real hardline

:
t 53

communlst who controls Sam Neua. The Prime Minister emphasized Hanoi's

-SEG-RE'T/SENSITIVE/EYES ONLY %ﬁﬁﬁ
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dominiatir.,,rtx of the Pathet Lao., In tracing the hi.s‘tory of American aid to

Laos, the Prime Minister réviewed th.e Lao Irrara activities and the break
between the L-éo Irrara and the Lao Comfnuhisf in, I believe he said, 1945, ‘ On
leaving the Prifné ‘Miﬁister'sﬁ office Congressman Waldie said '""That was one

of the fine_si co‘nversations I have evei‘ had. "

4, ."l(’he Congres smen then pro.ceeded directly to my residence to change
clothes aﬁd prepare for a 7:30 dinner. At this dinner 8 included the DCM, the
USAID Director and Deputy Direc‘:tor,v the Chief of the Political éection,
former Mavrinbe Colonel Loren Haffner, Assistant USAID Director for Field
Operations, Dr. Ch»arvlle‘s ) Weldon’, Chief of USAID Public Health Division,
Edgvar' (Pop) Buell, Area Coordinator Xieng Khouangville‘ Province, Biaine
Jensen, Deputy Area Codrdiﬁator Xieng Khouangville, Frank Albert, USIS
Officer responsible for MRII, Howard Mushett, Mission Guard Service and
former marine associate of Congressman McCloskey, and FSO Morton Dwori%en,
Embassy political/military officer. The guest list Was designed to present to
the Congressmen the men i‘n‘this Mission most ’phoroughl'y familiar with refugees
and the officer responsibié for applying the rules of engagement in Laos.

5.' Conversation durihg and after dinner was lively. ’The’ Congressmen
were bent on having the other guests admit that American bombing was the principal.
reason for Laotians becoming refugees. To various and sundry degrees the |
Government léfficials denied this charge. My own position, which I made clear
to thé Cdpg;‘gssmen, was thé,t bombing may well be a factor in making people
1’;efugees -vb\;t'tvthat I believe thevre were at least two other factors which were of
e?:mal imiao'i‘tance, e, the‘hardship of living under Pgthet Lao rule and the

imposition of a Communist regime on a Laotian society. After the guests left,
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I Spoké'briefly with ;ché Congreésmen who rz.a.isvedvth_e- question of B-52 rz.;ids'

up nolth é.nd Thai troo;ps.. I did not deny thé.- ekistenc»é of both of .these elements‘
but ‘tolvd them that this fact was ..c:;onsi_der‘ed top secret by our COverhﬁent and

I expected them to respecf this classification. ;I'he.'y both solemnly told me

that they would accept this clas;;ificafion.

6. At bre_atkfast this morﬁing the Congres.smen_-were most complimentary
regarding the fnanner in vézhich they had been treated but §vere perturbed that |
 some of my guestsllast- e'v'enin.g had deniedl‘chat. bombings was a factor in
creating refugees. 1 toid them ‘.vxbzev. ali had oﬁr personal vie\%/s but that I did not
believe that any of the gue..sts ‘lazét. night 'were‘ willfully misleading them.

e Dire}:tl'y from the\re.sideﬁce we proceeded.vto Lao National Defense :
where the Congressmep interyiewed five North Vietnamese POW'S. As of the
moment I do not have a detailed i'é.p01"t‘ 'o.n. what tréﬁs?pired but I understand they
were satisfied with this intefview. Cor;éi;essman Waldie then Weht out sightseeing
aﬁd Congressman McCloskey proc‘eededf'to the ofﬁce. There he conferred with
‘the DCM and inte.r‘mittentlyb Qith Trie. Tﬁe »C(iangre'.ssman beca;ne quite emotional
over some of my guests last evening who eXpresvsed the view that bombing did
not creafe refugeés_. During this conversation the,(v?longressrvnan‘ raised the :
question of a report he had been shown in Washington concerning refugees and
the poll taken:of certain refugees as to the reason why they left their homes. He‘
demaﬂded a copy of the raw material from Whicﬁ thlS report was made. The
DCM and I promised to giire him one and wé said ;ve ;hould endea;or to have it in -
his hands before he departed at one p;‘:m. with a érolup of AID and RLG offécials

to visit refugees on the Vientiane Plain. The Congressman was in a highly

SECRET/SENSITIVE/EYES ONLY"
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égitatéd state éﬁd ?or; several occasions,said‘he did ;ot want to go ﬁc; Lué_ng :
Pra.ba.ng}g as Aschédvuled but wished torem»a.in ‘in ‘Vientiape, himsélf conducting

a poll ‘of the _refﬁgees. I offered to endéévor to obtain servi_c‘e‘s' of a 'local

_Mis sionary as iptel*preter. However, I finally conv«inced the Congressman that
he would gain much more by going to Luang Prabé.ng,' visiting refugees :
se-’ctlernenté en roﬁte and in Luang Prabang, | seeing firsthanci what we are doing
for the newly a.:ljrived réfﬁgees.

8. At twelve o'.bclio'ck ‘C.onglre,s»sman Mcéloskey, now joined by :
Congrgssman Waidie, met With:M_ax Cdiffaif, AFP, Carl Strock, AP Stringer,
Tammy Arbucklé, ‘Wa'shingtor.l Star a1‘1d.’I‘onk That Ky, Reuters, in the USIS
offices, The C“(')ngressmen said they wished to meet ;zvith these journalists to "
obtain the jourﬁalists' yiews on the Lao situatioh and not repeat ﬁot to give“a
press conference. _I‘. told the U_SIS péopie not repeat not to ble present at this
meeting, AID Director, Lao authdri.tié‘s and AID personnel dealing with
refugees were at the party of six \;Vh(_)‘; héd arrived in Vientiane this morning,
arrived at thé air.p.ort at 1330. They were aléo aCC;)mpaI.lied byv Washington
Star reporter "Ta;mmy" Arbuckle, A;P Stfinger, Carl Strock, and AFP
reporter Max Coiff?.it. Uponv arrival af the airport, after having been introduced
to thé RLG officials, Congressman McCloskey asked where was the refugee :
report that the DCM prqmised him. .Upon being info;med by USAID Director
that he had no icnoWledge of a report to be furnishéd the Congressman, McCloskey
in a highly emotional and loud voice stated that pl%nned trip shouid be cancelled,
that here in Vientiane as in Saigon he ':has been liéd ItO by an FSO-1 and th;t he
\x}ould- return to the Lane Xang H'otel to Board with the ;Dther party and would move

out of the Ambassador's residence. AID Director -and Mission guard service

SR /SENSITIVE/EYES ONLY
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offered to immediately call the DCM and send a vehicle to town to (?btaiﬁ
subject report. We were told by ’Con‘gre»ssvman McCloskey that he was no
longér interested in takingv thé trip and wanted his baggage taken from the
airport a-.nd returned to the Lane Xang Hotel. Mission Guard Service officer
Mushett prevailed upon Congressman to return to his quarters for lunch.

Party then went from airport to Embassy and Mushett telephoned me at my
home at 1400 hours. I offered to proceed directly to the Embasgy to confer
with the Congressman but Mushett said the Congressman was in such an
.emotional state that he recommended the Congressman proceed to his quarters.
The reas‘on‘ we did not have the report at the airport was that we encountered
difficulty in find it. It was only at 1245 that a copy could be found and it then
had to be copied. We will endeavor to ascertain how press happened to accompany
Congressman to the airport. When they arrived they were accompanied by
Strock and Coiffait who wanted to know whether they would receive what they
askedbfor.

9. At 1500 Congressmen returned to the Embassy. They were given
material submitted to Laos Country Officer Mark Pratt under cover of letter
from DCM dated Jan. 5, 1971, this includes briefing 1’éports ana sample
inferviews with refugees in Vientianevplain and Ban Xon (Site 272). Classification
and headings of documents were removed and Congressfaen were informed that
these \lﬁere only ''studies'' embassy had undertaken and that. they were intended
for internal Mission use. Congreésmenk and I then met for some thirty minutes.
Congressman Waldie vvés extremely relaxed and before McCloskey joined us -
expressed hié peréénal regret at this incident. McCloskey then charged that

members of my staff had misled him last evening and bore in hard on why
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he h.ad not r‘epeat nof been furnished withvthese reports immedia’ceiy upon
his ar?i\}el. I reiterated that tl'lese reports haci no official stat.us inv that there
were less than 300 persons intefﬁewed eﬁd the vastn majority of these people
carﬁe from one area in Leos. I. peinted out tha‘e there are over 260,000 refugees
in Laos and that I did ﬁot believe that‘a small number‘ of refugees from one area
could be considered as expressing overall refugee oplini‘on. Congressman
poinfed out that 97 percent of tlle refugees indicated that bombing had been a :
factor in their Eee_oming 'r.eufugéee. I said that it was my considered opinion
that bombing was only one of three facters involved and that I did not accepf
these reports. 'r].‘hve Cengressmen then attacked the honer of members of my
_etaff and the lack of ethics shewn. by us ali in not bringing these reﬁorts immediately{
to his attention. » I repeatedly pointed out fo the Congressman that I and my staff
were doi.ng everything possible in eenjﬁpction with the USAF‘ not repeat not to
bomb inhabited village‘s. He appeered fo accept this statement Vand both
Congressmen said they accept tode.y that it is our policy not repeat not to bomb
villages. I addedAI knew this was the poliey of my predessesor. I repeatedly
| pointed out we were not responsible for RLAF T-28's. But then McCloskey
reve:ted to the fact that he was not furnished the reports.

10. The Congressmen and their enfourage left the Embassy at 1600. I
told the Congfessmen I hoped they Would spend the night at the residence ahd they
refused courteousiy as well as offer to i‘lave a drink this evening. McCloskey ‘
alleged he would be going throu‘gh reperts with great eare and demanded to be
permi‘cted. to visit with his staff tomorrow the .same villages where we had

queried the refugees before. He alleges that his mission is to ascertain

firsthand whether the .reports are accurate or whether the views expressed to
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hifn last é%fening prevail.

li. ‘Congressman Waldie told me that his views on our Government's
policy in Laos have changed for the better as a result of his visit here.
Congressman McCloskey alleged that his‘ '"eyes had been opened and he is

not repeat not convinced that our policy is bad.'

121 .apologize for fhe length of this report but believe you should
have full flavor of what trans?ired for it may be c.arried in the press. Will
: ) fépoi‘t tomorrow
13. As CODEL leaving tomorrow for Saigon request this message

=]

be repea{cgd to Amb. Bunker, and that Assistant SecState Marshall Green be

informed.

SEGRET /SENSITIVE/EYES ONLY
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sweans 15 1243Z April 1971 VIA CAS CHANNELS
FROM: - AMBASSADOR GODLEY, VIENTIANE 205

TO: : THE WHITE HOUSE, GENERAL HAIG

L, ’ C‘ODEL ‘McC1oske'y departed Vientiane airport at 0715
this fnorning to visit éhe réfugee village at Ban Na Ngha (Vientiane
Plain) séme twenty kilometers north of Vientiane. They selected this
site theﬁselves from a dozen or so sites that we had listed they could
visit. The site was selected as they got into the chopper. They were
accompanied by Fat};e;r Menger, Reverend Roffe, plus Vientiane
resident journaliété. The grouﬁ spent some three and a half hours at
the site and returned ét 1215. They subsequently had lunch with‘
Director, US AID Mann and all that emerged was their praise of the
US AID refugee program.
. 2. Congresbsrn“en Waldie and McCloskey called on me this
afternoon at 1430. Waldie asked to make three points: the first was
that the refugee resettlement site they visited was the finest refugee
site he ilé.d ever seen; the next was to express his adrﬁiration for the
professional competence, iﬁtegrity and industry of AID's Director of
Field Oper‘ations, Loren Haffner; and the third was to indicate that of
thg eight péople he interviewed, all said that bombing of their homes

had been t.};ie" factor of their becoming refugees.

-
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-2 McCloskey then took the floor, he too had

~as, evidently from the general Khahg Khay

«ved in"Khang Khay itself). All of these persons

‘rove them from their homes. Most, if not all,

- there were enemy installations within two to

iz homes. One said that the distance was a

- -re were four enemy guards on the installation.
N wheﬁ these people left their homes and he said
‘d indicated 1968 or early 1969. I asked the

“sons interviewed could.identify the aircraft

11 seemed to be familiar with aircraft nomenclature,

s F-4‘s; etc., but that in his interviews either
a8 interviﬂéwed did not describe the aircraft

“hat the intefroéa(:ees complained principally of
@) and some spoke of white phosphorus. None of

I mentioned napalm. Both Congressmen said

~peat no mention of defoliants and that they therefore

7ad never been used in Laos. I said that to my

~is had been used on a specific, known enemy-held

2l request in writing from the Prime Minister

s on three of the se{ren targets he had requested.
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The Cmn‘grcssmen said théy-were impressed with the fact that the

casuaitiés tﬁéy were‘ informed of by the villagers were extremely light.
McCloskey"sa'id asba.n example that in one village of forty inhabitants |

only two or three had been killed. Théy also acknowledged that in one ;
of the reports it is indi‘cated that 95 percent of the people said that even

if peace were ééﬁieYed they would not repéat not rbeturn to a Péthet
vLao—domina.ted area. McCloskey said that he had inquired why the people
moved from the s.outh.eArn 1) lést year and one person told him he was
ordered by the Royall I;ao Government. I said this was quite possible but
that no repeat no Amer’i’cans‘, ever init.iated such an order or transmitted
such an order. McCloskey concurred and also volunteered that one

pei‘son had told him that in peqple‘did not wish to seek sanctuary they could
have easily stayed beﬂind., ‘ |

4. Just prior to meeting with the Congressmen I received two

hastily prepared memoranda from AID officers who were present at an
: informal press conference Congressman McCloskey gave upon i‘eturning
from the fefugee site this morning. They read as f_pllows: (1) "From
Win McKeithen on McCloskey's press conference of 4/15/71 upon returniﬁg
from refugé‘e sites: McCloskey stated: It is a éonsciou_s policy of the

U’SG to;qub. civilién villages "f.or“ a twenty--two month period extending

' th,rough.rl“)(;S into 1969. All the refugees we talked to came out because

e S e ot Y s Y OO
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of U. 5. bombmg We we're pui‘poeely elerﬁed USG su‘rveysvof Bom!eing
- in refugee areas that had been prepared by the U S. Embassy in Vlentlane »
and that clearly demonstrated that the majority of the refugees came out
because of U. .S. bombing. From the moment we arriv.ed.we were denied
the existence of sueh a repovrln; ar;d‘ lied to by every American in the
Embassy until ye‘s‘te_rday‘fnefnirig" When th_is non-existent document was
finally made availe.ble to us but eﬂven' then ‘the copy provided us was not
the same as the originﬂal Which'wie’ haci seen .pl;e\/;iods_ly.

"Win said that ‘invaria.bly all the re‘fugeee‘ they interviewed state& fha£
they had come down because of the bembing- and they took pictures of
men, women and children Who-ﬂed b'ufp scars from ‘WP, arﬁputations, A
etc. (actually they saw one case).‘ Win said McCloskey stressed the

following:

"Of the villages bombed, in no inetence was there any PL or NVN troop
closer than 2 KLM .fro‘m the village;

H2o haroe numiae;c's of livestock_v‘fere' kiiled by aircraft.

"3, When questioned whether they were ofder off the PDJ by the RLG,
all stated that they had been orderedvei"ff.

"4, USG and U.S. Embassy ip Vientiane has censistently lied. .. (con-

tinued next cable)
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T ; THE WHITE HOUSE, GENERAL HAIG

to the Pr@#s Corps and withheld data, pafticularly regarding civilian
war casualties. That Nixon also‘withlvleld similar information that was
vital to the war situation in his speech of May 1970.
"5, Congress of the U S. has‘beenr deliberately misled. Will»submit
‘a report to be entered into the recbrd of Congress.."
(2) "The following ié ~from. Eafl J. Young:
"When making his. totail summary to the press, McCloskey stated:
Amb; Godley assured me thét with the exception of eight villages whi;:h
had been bombed through pilot error or otherwise, no villages in Laos
had been deliberately destroyed by Amei‘ican éir. My conversations
with the sampling of thé residents of 13 villages on the PDJ has convinced
me beyond any doubt thvat‘ all of them were bpmbed deliberately without
presence of enemy ti‘oops (closer than 2 KLLM radius). Therefore, I can
 draw no other conclusion than the fact that the U.S. Ambassador has
deliberately ordered or sanctioned the destruction of these villages in
5

the VPDJ area."

5.A 1 did notvrevea.l to the Congressmen my knowledge of the .
fofegging_but I asked thérﬁ po.int blank if they thouglr;t I was authorizing

. the borhb;lz{g of villages inhabited by civilians. McCloskey said that the

SEERET
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information he had collected this morning convinced him that villages
had i)eei.rx, boh,abed and that he a.‘ssumed I had authorized such action. ' I
asked if hr was accusing me of being a liar. He said definitely he was

not-and thén I asked him if he would accept the fact that it was not U. S.
Governinent policy to bomb inhabited villéges and he said he would
accept this stateﬁlent. He repéated this a second time. McClbskey
then went on to criticize and attack Father Menger, an American
missionary who has/géen in Laos for about twenty years and who acted
as his interpreter 'tod;a:y. He told me that Father Menger had told him
"thank God for the bombing.l " Fortunately another officer who had
overheard the Father's remark was a?le to correct the Congressman
by saying that the Father had adde& ""without the bombing ILaos would -
be taken over by the‘ Communists, "

6. The fiﬁal subject Wés the Congressman's personal attack
against the honor of my DCM for, according to the Congressman, willfully
 withholding the survey report yesterday. I told the CongreAssman that
I was responsible fo‘r-whatever my subordinates did and that I could
‘solemnly assure him that the DCM was not willfully’ misleading the
YU 5. Conéi‘essmen and that the problem attendant to delivery of this
l;eporf‘:‘-wa‘s an administrative--sriafu. ‘ - havé known tile DCM for many
: ygar‘s and had complete confidence in his integrity. We ended with a

‘confused argument regarding the importance of the Congressman's having

s
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the repbft before he leﬂ; for Lua"'ng Prabahg yesterday and m‘y poini:ing
. ~out that the repért had.n'othing to ‘do {xrith the Luang Prabang refugees
who had come frbm_a Atotally different part of Laos tﬁan tho;e covered
in'.the reportsf |

7. The entire group d:(%pé.rted Vientiang airport at 15110 for
Udorn where the tx%ro CoﬁgfeSSmen are séheduled to confer some more
with 7/13th Air Force persdnnel and'Consul Barnes. The rest of the
group will go on té Béngkok. Latef toda,y the two Copgi‘es smen will
proceed to Saiéon where I understand they hope to meet'vwith Ambassador
Bunker, former South _Vietnamese Plres‘idential‘Candidate Dzu, jailed
Congressman Chau, Arnbas“sad-o‘r. ‘Colb.y and be briefed on thé Phoenix
Program. I have informede'mba's‘sa‘.dor Berger of their désires. I
understand that angressmen will depart Saigon the evening of‘Al:r il 16
for they must be in Washington rhérning c;f April 17 to permit Congressman
McCloskey to ap;‘Jear on TV during the afternoon of the same day.

8. After Congressmen's departure, I met with the two interpreters
who accompanied the Congressmen this morning and two mission officers
who also werilt along. I have reviewed with them th:t the Congressmen
reported to me re‘ their interviews. Tl.xe interpreters and the mission
officers indicéted that there is- nothing that they coul& challenge in what

the Congressmen reported to me. The Congressmen, however, omitted

e
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two interviewees who bitterly aitacked the Pathet Lao and communism.
Father Menger and Revereﬁd Roffe both attacked the Congressmen's
general attitude o¥1 the war in Liaos and expressed their admiration for
our Government's position here. One of the mission officers who svpeaks
perfect Lao and who has been working with refugees for over four years
Aplus the two interpreters indicated that the interviews were on the style
of an Américan Police Court. These three men believe that \x‘/hile the

; questions were not obviously slanted that any‘_gimple Lao would give the
answers desired. They also noted that the ages given by the interviewees
mainly erroneous due to the lack of education of the intervigwees all of
whom were extreme.ly simple people. They also pointed out that a
refugee rarely will admit the presence of enemy forces in his home
village fearing that he will be atté.cked for having supported or helped :
these enemy troops.

9. Please pass Assistant SecState Marshall Green and DCI Helms.

Group 1.
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MEMORANDUM

THE WHITE HOUSE INFORMATION
WASHINGTON i

| SBGRET /SENSITIVE/EYES ONLY

MEMORANDUM FOR: THE PRESIDENT

FROM: © . oo HENRY A. KISSINGER fK . L
SUBIECT: =+ ‘ Ambassador Godley'é Report on Visit by
: ML : ey Congressmen McCloskey and Waldie to’

Vientiane

We have received the attached backchannels from Godley on the McCloskey#
Waldie visit to Vientiane April 13-15. It was a somewhat unusual Congres-
sional mission and it ended on a rather tense note. The following are the

main points which you should be aware of. ‘

Aprii-ls - SR 2 : o b&c,;.z(gle.u_gg-zgv
' e R e e YA
-- Godley received them well and gave them a straightforward briefing
on our activities there, including acknowledgment that about 200 — Tl

56 KRR

st

-- In a 45-minute meeting with Souvanna Phouma the Prime Minister
emphasized the necessity of continued and increased American military
assistance, but made clear he was not seeking personnel. He also stated
that the Lao could continue the war without the CIA,
In response to a question he said that L.aos could not
continue to exist if the Vietname se got together and he referred McCloskey
to Ho Chi Minh's ambition to control all of former French Indochina. He
emphasized Hanoi's control of the Pathet Lao and described his half-brother
as a frontman. ' ' : :

-- At a dinner in their honor and attended by senior embassy personnel,
the Congressmen pressed their argument that American bombing was the
principal reason for Laotian refugees. This was denied in varying degrees
by those present and Godley emphasized that the hardships caused by the
Pathet Lao and the imposition of a Communist regime were equally important
reasons. In response to questions, Godley did not deny the B-52 raids up
north*in Laos. He made clear, however, that
this information was classified Top Secret, and both Congressmen agreed to
respect this classification.’ ' /

i}
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April 14

-- On a number of occasions throughout the visit, McCloskey became
rather emotional and upset about the refugee-bombing question. He demanded
to see the raw material and interviews with refugees used to make a report
he had seen in Washington. (This was promised and eventually produced but
not as promptly as he had demanded.) He charged that Embassy personnel
were misleading him and that he should have been given the material immedi-
ately upon his arrival. In a rather agitated state McCloskey canceled his
scheduled trip to visit refugees on the Vientiane Plain, moved out of the
Embassy and said he was going to study the report material and would visit
the villages covered in the report the next day.

-- Godley explained that the material had no official status and repre=-
sented interviews with only 300 out of 260,000 refugees, that bombing was
only one of the factors and that he didn't accept the reports as conclusive.

He emphasized a number of times that it was not our policy to bomb villages.

-- Waldie said he regretted McCloskey's making an issue of the report
materials and said his own views of our policy there had changed for the
better. McCloskey said his eyes had been opened and he was not convinced
that our policy was bad. :

-- Both Congressmen met with the press, ostensibly to elicit their
views on refugees, but it is likely.that some of the above will come out.

April 15

-- On the 15th, both Congressmen visited a refugee village on the Vien-
tiane Plain for three and one-half hours and interviewed 8 refugees each.
They claimed that each of the refugees interviewed had said that the bombing
of his village had been the factor in his becoming a refugee. The refugees
admitted, however, that enemy installations in most cases were within two

to eleven kilometers of their homes. The Congressmen also said that they
were impressed with the fact that casualties were extremely light. Both

had strong praise for the AID refugee program.

-- At an informal news conference McCloskey said that through '68
and into '69 it was a conscious policy of the USG to bomb villages and that
the U.S. Ambassador had deliberately ordered or sanctioned such bombings.
He claimed that all the refugees came out because of the bombing and he
criticized the Embassy for not giving him its bombing surveys, etc., alleging
that he had been lied to about the existence of such materials. He also claimed
that you had withheld similar information in your May 1970 speech and he
contended that Congress had been deliberately misled.

SEERFET /SENSITIVE/EYES ONLY
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-- Godley later asked the Congressmen if they thought he was
authorizing the bombing of villages inhabited by civilians. McCloskey
said he assumed that such actions had been authorized by Godley, but he
denied that he was accusing Godley of being a liar. In the end, McCloskey
agreed to accept the fact that it was not U.S. Government policy to bomb
inhabited villages.

-- McCloskey closed with a personal attack on Godley's DCM, accusing
him of willfully misleading the Congressmen and withholding information.
Godley replied with a strong statement of his complete confidence in his
DCM's integrity. :

I have just received an additional backchannel from Godley giving a post-
visit assessment. In brief, his conclusion is that the Congressmen came

simply to re-enforce their preconceptions and were bent on a confrontation,
which in spite of his best efforts he was unable to avoid.

Attachments ; ‘ : '.
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‘Tos G.e'.vne,rel Haig, The .Whlte House
FROM:E ‘.i Ambassador Godley, V1ent1ane 200
‘ 'SUBJECT McCloskey/Wald1e CClDEL :
| 1. McCloskey/Wa1d1e arr1ved V1ent1ane apprex1mately 1545 yesterday
En route here they had_several hovurs at Udorn where Major General Evans,
,Deputy ACo‘mvr‘hander 7/13th and h1s -eteff br_iefedthe Congressmen (the rest
of the Shite arriye’d.Vientl'ah,ne only 1;1:00 :thie rhcrhing) on air suleport in

northern Laos. General Evans report is being forwarded separately through

military channels'. e T e S SAN 1 :‘:‘
" : e . o : _ For Sec.3 b)(n)(e),ﬂ.u-zb
re-m 3/4 /200

2. I recelved the Congres smen upon the1r arrival in my office and

with AID Director briefed them on recent Lao history and the current military

situation. I acknowledged that

I spoke

‘of my admiration for the"way the C‘lA was conducting itself and indicated my

prefere'nce for CIA opereting here rather than US ground forces. I mentioned
that CIA personnel ihvolved in this vyo rk— During

A this conversatioh Cengreesmenvwere rhost affable, even nearly .unctuous; 'I'hey

were, hewever,. extremely upsetv over what they alleged to have been the

. treatment accorded them in V1etnam where they allege an FFSO-1 had lied to them

about CIA personnel. They 1nqu1red into the M1ssmn guard service and

asked if this was a C‘IA»operation. AID Director Mann, who was with me .

durlng the conversatmn, explalned in con31derable detail the Mission guard

S"-.EG-EET/SENSITIVE/EYES ONLY
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serﬁee:. ’”_ '._T‘heir: sﬁséie‘iqn'evidently‘ by thefactthat iva’.‘fc_)rme:r mel_'ihe
| associetef ef C‘ong.r'es‘stnan McC'les;_key."s.,. who he.d been“a rha;rvine intelligehce
: veff:i.cev:r;.-:how:heads the‘Miee‘ion guard service
e 3.« At f»iye:o'vcleclt We wererecewed b).r‘th',e :Prime Mitlistel; for
foff{r-five_rr'liniite?s'...r The cohirerea;.tior; was e’}.ctremelly'pleas_afnt and‘When'as‘ked
if there Wet'e e,ny Thai fox{ces. in “I__,.aebs, the ;Pra;.me Mihister said that there
mlght be sorrie Thai of_‘I;,ae ethnie o‘ﬁgi‘n ‘cvurre_r.xtly serving in the irregular forces
| here, ‘Th‘is‘ 1ed hii:h to di‘suéus':s"et leﬁgththeeth.mc Lao living in Thailand, whom
he said nutmber twenty re?eat tweht‘y tniliioh. :The Congressmen asked whem
the Prime M1n1ster thought they‘ should see in th1s ceuntry and he suggested |
the North Vietnamese POW’s, Lao off1c1als and any 11tt1e Lao they could speak
w1th. The Pr1me Mlnlster ctest:nbed for the Congressmen Amerlcan assistance
from 1952 on and si:oke of the nece531ty for oﬁr conttnued and increased
! o e ﬁ'%m(b)(lXe) PLE~
military assﬂ:ance but empha&zed that he was not seeklng American personnel, o

Congressman McClloskey asked if CIA were'tov be wit_hd-rawn could the Lao

continue the war, The Prime Minister without hesitation said ‘”Yes,-‘ ;

‘asked the Prime Minister if all American troops were withdrawn from South

Vietnam and the Vietnamese got together whether Laos could continue to exist.

"
K

The Prime Mtnistex _wtth considefable emphasis sai_d it could not and refefred :
the'Congressmen‘ t‘ovHo Ch1 l‘\/Iinh's‘..a,me'-.tion 't.o_ce'ntrol all of forr;;;er French
Indochina. T_here was .cohsidel"a.ble discuss.ien: of the.Pathet Lao. The Prime
: Minister described his half brother as a front and Kay‘soi'ne as ’che real haxdlinei
ciomrhunist who centrols',se.m Neua. The .Pr‘ime,Minister emphasized Hanoi'si

SHSRFT /SENSITIVE/EYES ONLY
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aoinination of the ‘Pa'thet L’ao. In tiacihg the history of Americanb aid to

‘Laos, ,thé Prirh_e Minister rev‘ie\}ved( the 'L%oﬂ‘lrr.ai*a activifieé and thé bre;ik
between the‘ Lao Irrara épd .the Lao.Com.rmvmisvt in, I believe he sa_id, 1945; -On
leaving the Prime Mini‘ster’s of,t;i"c‘e Congressman Waldie .said "That was one

of thé finest conversations I have é‘}er had." -

4, Thé Congressmen thenrproc‘eede’d‘ directly to my residence to change
cilothes .a',nd p:reparve for a 7:30 di!‘nn‘e;-r. Af: Ythis.dinner‘ 8 included the bCM, th.e
USAID ]'Direétor and Deﬁut% Dlrector, thé Chief of the Political éection, :
former Marine Colonel Lorén H‘affne‘r, ,As‘:s.i‘sta;nt ‘USAID birectbr for Fieid
Operations, Dr. Chilir W e R e meaits Division,
Edgar (Pop).‘ Bueli, Areé Coordinatzor'.Xie.ng thpangvﬂlé Provinc-e,‘ Blaine
Jensen, Deputy Arera Céordina;to? Xié.ngtho'uangville., Frank Albert, USIS
Officer responsible for MRII, Hmtav:arvdl .Mﬁshett, Mission Guard Service -and
fqrmer marihe associate of Congx"e,é;ma;n McCloskey, and FSO Morton Dworkeh,
Embassy political/rﬁilitary officevr.‘ ‘The guést list waé designed to present to
the Congress-men’the men in this Mission most thoroughly familiar with refugees
and the officer responsible for appl-yiﬁg the rules of engagement in Laos.

5 Convéréatioh during and afte:b' &iﬁnér was lively. The Congressmen
were bent on having the othef guests admit ‘that Amex;iéan bombing was the principal
reason for Laotians bvec'omi,'ng refugeeéﬁ To various and sundry degrees the .
Government officials denied thi.s charge. bMy»ovvvn poéifion, Which I made clear
to the Congressmen, was fhat bombing may ’wellvbe a factor in making people
;_efugees but that I believe fhere- were at least two other factors which Were of
e%qual importance, ile.; ’the hardship of living under Pathet Lao rule and the

imposition of a Communist regime on a Laotian society. After the guests left,
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1 spoke bi'ieﬂy with the Congressmen who raised the question of B-52 raids

up north iand Thai troops. I did not deny the exis_tence of both of these elements
but told them that this fact was considereditOp secret by our Government and

I expected them to respect this classification. They both solemnly told me
that they would accept. this claséification.

6. At.breakfast this morning the Congressmen were most complimentary
: regarding the rr;anne;‘ in which they had been tre;ted but were perturbed that
some of my guests last evening had denied that bombings was a factor in
creating refugees. I told them we all had our personal viev.vs but that I did not
Qbelieve that any of the guests last night were willfully misleading them.

7. Directly from the residence we proceeded to Lao National Defense
whére the Congressmen interviewed five North Vietnamese POW's. As of the
moment I do not have a detailed report on what transpired but I understand they
were satisfied with this interview. Corigressman Waldie then went out sightseeing
and Congressman McCloskey proceeded to the office. There he conferred with -
.the DCM and intermi.ttently with me. The Congressman became quite emotional
over some of my guests last evening who expresséd the view that bombing did
not create refugees. During this conversaﬁon the Congressx;nar; raised the
question of a report he had been shown in Washington concerning refugees and
the poll taken of certaiﬁ refugees as to the reason wlfy ﬁhey left their homes. He
demanded a'copy' of the raw r‘naterial.from which this report was made. The
DC‘M and I promised to give him one and we said we would endeavor to have it in
his hands before he departe‘d at one p.m. with a group of AID and RLG officials
to visit refugees or'1lthe Vientiane Plain. The Congressman was in a highly

SR T /SENSITIVE/EYES ONLY
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| agitated s.tate and on several occasions said he did not want to go to Luang
Prabang as scheduled but wished to remain in Vientiane, himsélf conducting
a poll of the refu‘gees. I offered to endeavor to obtain services of a local
Missionary as interpreter, » However, I finally convinced the Congressman that
he would gain much more by goi'ng to Luang Prabang, visiting refﬁgees
settlements en route and in Luang Prabang, seeing firsthand what we are doing
for the ngwly arrived refugees.
8. At twelve o'clock Congressman McCloskey, now joined by
Congressman Waldie, met with Max Coiffait, AFP, Carl Strock, AP Stringer,
QTarnmy Arbuckle, Washington Star and Ton That Ky, Reuters, ‘in the USIS
offices. The Congressmen said they wished to meet with these journalists to
obtain the journalists' views on the Lao situétion and not repeat not to give a
press conference. I told the USIS people not repeat not to bé‘present at this
meeting, AID Director, Lao authoritie‘s and AID personnel dealing with
refugees were at the party of six who had arrived in Vientiane this morning,
arrived at the airport 'a.t T30 They were also accompanied by Washington
Star reporter '""Tammy'" Arbuckle, AP Stringer, Carl St}:ock, and AFP
reporter Max Coiffait. Upon arrival at thé airport, after ha'ving__been introduced
to the RLG officials, Congressman McCloskey asked where was the refugee
report that the DCM promised him. Upon being info::‘ni_ed by USAID Director
that he had no knowledge of a report to be furnished the Congressman, McCloskey
in a highly emotional and loud voice stated that planned trip should be cancelled, |
that here in Vientiane as in Saigon he has been lied to by aﬁ FSO—l and thaf he
would return to thg .Lane Xang Hotel to board with the other party and would move

out of the Ambassador's residence. AID Director and Mission guard service
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offered ts»iﬁmediately call the DCM and ‘send‘ a veﬁicle to town to obtain

subject 1?&};«4:;:.'&,“ We were told by Crongressman McCloskey that he was no

longer inf._f:rérs'i:ed in taking the trip and waﬁted his baggage taken from the
airport and returned to the Lane Xang Hotel. Mission Guard Service officer
Mushett prévai]ied upon Congressman to return to his quarters for lunch.
i Pai;ty then went from airport to Embassy and Mushett telephoned me- at my

home at 1400 hours. I offered to prdceed directly to the Embassy to confer

with the Congressman but Mushett said the Congressman was in such an
emotional state that he ;‘ecommended the Congressman proceed to his quarters.
The reason we did n_o‘cvha.ve the report at the airport was that we encountered
difficuity in find it. it was oniy at 1245 that a copy could be found and it then.
had to be copied. We will endeavor to ascertain how press happened to accompany
Congressman to the airport. | When they arrived they were accompanied by
Strock and Coiffait who wanted to know whether they would receive what they
asked for. . |

9. At 1500 Congfessmen returned to‘ the Embassy. They were given

material submitted to Lao's Country Officer Mark Pratt under cover of letter
from DCM dated Jan; 5, 1971, this includes briefing reports and sample
interviews with refugees in Vientiane Plain and Ban Xon (Site 272). Classification
and headings of documents were removed and Congressmen were informed that
these were oﬁly '"'studies'' embassy had undertaken and that they were intended
.for int‘ei*ﬁa-ll,M‘ission use, Céngressmen and I then met for some thirty minutes.
Qongressrnan Waldie was extremely relaxed and before McCloskey joined us
e>‘{pre’s{sevd l';is personal regret at this incident. McCloskey then charged that

members of my staff had misied him last evening and bore in hard on why
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he had not repeat not been furnished with these reports immediately upon

his arrival. I reiterated that these reports had no official status 1n that there
were less than 300 persons interviewed and the vast majority of these people
came from one area in Laos. I pointed out that there are over 260,000 refugees
in Laos and that I did not believe that a small number of refugees from one area
could be considered as expressing overall refugee opinion. Congressman
pointed out that 97 percent of the refugees iﬁdica’ced that bombing had beén a
factor in their becoming refugees. I said that it was my considéred opinion
ythat bombing was only one of three factors involved and that I did npt accept
these reports. The Congressman then attacked the honor of members of my
staff and the lack of ethics shown by us all in not bringing these reports immediatelyi
to his attention. I repeatedly pointed out to the Congressman that I and my staff |
were doing everything possible in conjunction with the USAF not repeat not to

bomb inhabited villages. He }appealred to accept this statement and both.
Congressmen said they accept toda“y tha£ it is our policy not repeat not té bomb
villages. I added I knew this was the policy of my predessesor. I repeatedly
pointed out we were not responsible for RLAF T-28's. But then McCloskey

reverted to the fact that he was not furnished the reports,

10. The Congre_ssmen and their entourage left the Embassy at 1600. I

told the Congressmen I hoped they would spend.the nigl*;t at the residence and they
refused courteously as well as offer to have a drink this evening. McCloskey
alleged he would be going throu.gh reports with great éare and demanded to be
permitted to visit with his staff tomorrow the same villages where we had

queried the refugees before. He alleges that his mission is to ascertain

firsthand whether the reports are accurate or whether the views expressed to
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him last evening prevail.

1 VGongressman Waldie told me that his views on our Government's

poiicy in Lama have changed for the better as ai result of his visit here.
Congfes‘si:(lax:"McCioskey alleged that his '"eyes had beer; opened and he is
not repea;;; ta_idt convinced that ou.r policy is bad.'

12‘. I.apo'logize for the length of this report but believe you should
have full flévor of what transpired for it may be carried in the press. Will

report tomorrow.
13. As CODEL leaving tomorrow for Saigon request this message

be repeated to Amb. Bunker, and that Assistant SecState Marshall Green be

informed.

3
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SEERET 15 12437 April 1971 VIA CAS CHANNELS
FROM: AMBASSADOR GODLEY, VIENTIANE 205

TO: THE WHITE HOUSE, GENERAL HAIG

1. CODEL McCloskey departed Vientiane airport at 0715
this morning to ViSitI the refugee village ‘at Ban Na Ngha (Vientiane
; Plain)" some twenty kilprr}éte%s north of Vientiane. They seléc..ted this
site themselves vfro‘m a do_zen'Or so sites that we had listed they could
visit. The site was selected as_’lthey got into the chopper. They were
accompanied by Father Meng%er, ‘Revel;end Roffe, plus Vientiane
resident journalists. The gréup spent some three’and a half hours at
the site and returned .at ;1215.' They _éubsequently had lunch with
Director, US AID Mann and ail that er'nérged was their praise of the
US AID refugee program.

2. Congressmen Waldie an-d I\;ICC.loskey called on me this
afternoon at 1430. Waldie asked to make three points: the first was
that the refugee resettlement site they visited was the finest refugee
site he had ever seen; the next was to express his admiration for the
professional competenéé, integrity and industry of AID's Director of
Field Operations, Lox;en Haffner; and the third was to indicate that of
the eight people he'in’ceryiewed, all said that 50inbing of their homes

had been the factor of their becoming refugées.
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3. Congressman McCloskey then took the floorf he too had
interviewed eight pérsons, evidently from the general Khang Khay
Region (none 'I believe lived in'Khang Khay itself). All of these persons
had said that bombing drove them from their homes. Most, if not all,
however, admitted that there were enemy installations within two to
eleven kilometers -of their homes. One said that the distance was a
ten-minute walk and there were four enemy guards on the installation.
- I asked the Congressman when these people left their homes and he said
that those he inter{riewed indicated 1968 or eé,rly 1969. I asked the
Congressman if the persons interviewéd could-identify the aircraft
involved. He said that all seemed to be familiar with aircraft nomenclature,
ice.; T=28%s Skyraiders, F-4's, etc!, but that in his interviews either
he did not ask or persons interviewed did not describe the aircraft
specifically. He said. that thg interrogatees complaineci principally of
"cluster'" bombs (CBU'S) and some spoke of Whité phosphorus. None of
the personé interrogated mentioned napalm. Both Congressmen said
that they had heard no repeat no mention of defoliants and that they therefore
assumed that defoliants had never been used in Laos. I svaid that to my
knowledge once defoliants had been used on a specific; known enemy-held
area. Following a formal request in writing from the Prime Minister

I had approved defoliants on three of the seven targets he had requested.

CNLA/OG'Q—%\- L 2.,20M

g



SEGRET ‘ e o -3 -

‘The Congréssmen said they we‘ré. i‘mpréssed with‘the fact that the

" casualties they were iﬁformed‘of by'the villagers Qere extremely light.
McCloskey said:as aﬁ example that in one village of ‘forty inhabitants

o‘nlAy two or three had been killed. They also acknowledged that in one

of the feports it is indicated that 95 percent of the people said that even
if p»eac)enlwe re a'c‘HiAe”S'(ed théy ﬁz(_)\;ld ﬁ¢t repeat not return to a Pafhet
Lao-dominafed aréé. McCioskey said that he had inquired why the people.
moved from the southern PDJ‘.la>st yéar and one person told him he was -
order.ed by the Royal Lao Gover.nmént. II said Fhis Wasb quite pos.sible but
that no repeat no Americans ever initiated such an order or.transmitted
such an order. ’ McCloskey c.onc>u'r‘r>e<i; and also volunteered that one
person had told him that if people"_idid‘ not wish to seek sanctuary they could
have easily stayed béhind.

4. Just prior to meeting‘wii:h‘ the. Congressmen I re'ce‘ived two
hastily prepared memoranda from AID officers who were present at an
informal press Aco.nference Congressman McCloskey gave upon returning
from the refggee site this morning. Theyv read as fpllows: (1) From
Win McKeitﬁen §n McCloskey's presksl conference of 4/15/71 upon returning
from refugee sites: McCllo‘skey stated: It is a conscious policy of the
USG to bomb civilian .villages 'for a t'yven'ty—‘two month period extending

through 1968 into 1969. All the refugees we talked to came out because
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‘ of 1Ii8, 'bombing. We were purpose.ly denied USG surveys of bombing
in ?efugee areas that héd been_prepared by the U.S. Embassy in Vientiane
and that clearly demonstfated that the majority of the refugees came out
because of U.‘S. bombing. From the moment we arrived we were denied
the existence of such a report and lied to bgr every American iﬁ the
Embassy until ye sterdajr morning when this non-existent docurﬁent was

: ﬁnally made available to us but even then the copy provided us was not

the same as the original which we had seen previously.
"Win said that invariably all the refugees they interviewed stated that
they had come down because of the bombing and they took pi.ctures of
men, women and children who had bur‘n scars from WP, amputations,
etc. (actually they saw one case). Win said McCloskey sti‘essed the

following:

"Of the villages bombed, in no instance was there any PL or NVN troop

closer than 2 KL.M from the village.

2. Large numbersb of livebstock were killed by aircraft.

"3, When questioned whether they were order off the PDJ by the RLG,
all stated that they had been ordered off.

14, USG-and U, S. Embassy4ir.1‘ Vientiane has consistently lied. .. (con-

tinued next cable)
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’FROM ‘ AMBASSADOR'GODLEY, VIENTIANE_ 205

Fou 5l THE WHITE HOUSE, GENERAL HAIG

to the Pre_ss Corps end withheld da»te, .particulariy regard_ing civilian
- war »casualtres. 'fhat Nixon.also withheld similar inforrnation that was
..' vital to the war s1tnatlon in hlsv speech of May 1970 |

e Congress of the U. S has been dehberately mlsled W111 submit
a report to be ‘entered mto the record of Congress i

tZ) "The followmg is from Earl 3. Young

”When ma.kmg;r hls total summary to the press, McCloskey stated
Amb Godley as sured me that w1th the except1on of e1ght villages which
had been bombed’through p1iot error-olﬁ otherw1se, no villeges in Laos |
had been deliberatelty destroyed(hy Ar_neriioan air. My conversations .
with the sampling of the residents).ofll3 Villages on the PDJ has convinced | ety
" me beyond any rioub_t that all of them \r/ere bombed deliberately without -

.presence of enemy troops (closer' than 2’ KLM redrus). Therefore,_ I can

draw no other COnclusion than. the bfbact bthat the 8. Azhbassador has

deliberately ordered or sanctioned the destruction of these villages in

#
P

the PDJ area. " »
5. I did not reveal to the Congvress.men my knowledge of the .
foregoing but I asked them point blank if they thought I was a uthorizing

the bombing of villages inhabited_by civilians. McCloskey said that the
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infornﬁatidn he had colleéted this morning convinced him thativilla;ges
had been bombed and .tﬁat he assuméd I had éuthorized such actiovn. I
asked if he was.accuéing me of being a liar. He said definitely he was
not and then I asked him if he would accept the fact'that it was not U. S.
:Gover'nment' policy to' bomb iphabifed villa‘ges and he said he would
kaccept' this statenﬁént. : He re'peate‘ci. this a second time. McCloskey
then went on to criticize and attack AFather Menger, an American
missionary Whé has ‘be‘evn in La‘.o's‘ for about>twent‘:y y_eai's and who acted
as his interpr;ter today. He told me thé.t Father Menger had told him
""thank God for the bombing. "' Fortunately ano.ther officer who had
o&erheard the Father's remark was éiéle to correct‘ the Congressman
by saying that the Father had a@ded ”-Without the bombing Laos would
be taken over by the Comrximnists‘. S

6. The final subject was the Conéressman's personél attack

against the honor of my DCM for, according to the Congressman, willfully

withholding the survey report yesterday. I told the Congressman that

3

I was responsible for whatever my subordinates did and that I could
solemnly assure him that thé DCM was not willfully misleading the
. 5. Congressmén and that the proble.m atténdant to delivery of this
report was aﬁ administrétive ‘snafu. I haveikknown t}'1e DCM for many
years aﬁd had complete confide?nce in his ix;tégrity. We ended with a

confused argument regarding the importance of the Congressman's having
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the repoft before he left for Luang Prabang yesterday and my pointing
out that the report had nothing to do with the Lué.ng Prabang refugees
who had come from a totally'differént part of L.aos than those covered
in the reports.

7. The entire group departed Vientiane airport at 1510 for
Udorn where the two Congressmen are scheduled to confer some more
- with 7/13th Air Force personnel and Consul Barnes. The resf of the
group will go on to Bangkok. Later today the two Congressmen will
proceed to Saigon where I understand they hope to meet with Ambassador
Bunker, former South Vietnarnése Presidential Candidate Dzu, j’ailed
Congressman Chau, Ambassador ColbY and be briefed on the Phoenix
Program. I have informed Axﬁbassador Berger of thejr desires, I
understand that Congressmen Wiil depart Saigon the eve‘ning of Apr il 16
for they must be in Washingtoh ﬁorning of April 17 to permit Congressman
McCloskey to appear on TV during the aftgrnoon of the same day.

8. After Congressrhen's departure, I rhet with the tﬁro‘iﬁterpreters

who accompanied the Congressmen this morning and two mission officers

<
>

who also went along. I have reviewed with them what the Congressmen
reported to me re their interviews. The interpreters and the mission
officers indicated that there is nothing that they could challenge in what

the Congressmen reported to me. The Congressmen, however, omitted
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two inte r?iév&ees who bitteriy attacked the Pathet Lao and communism.
Fathel‘.‘ Menger and Reverend Roffe both attacked the Congressmen's
general atfitude oﬁ thé war in Laos and éxpressed their admiration for

onr Gover;ment's position here. One of the mission officers who speaks
perfect ‘LéO and who has been working with refugees for over four yeai’s
plus thé two interpreters indicated that the intérviews were on the style

of aﬁ Americ‘arkl Police Court. These three men believe that v;rhile the
questions were not obviously slabnted that any ,simple Lao would give the ___

answers desired. ‘They also noted that the ages given by the interviewees

mainly erroneous due to the lack of education of the interviewees all of
whom were extremély simple people. They also pointed out that a
refugee rarely will admit the presence of enemy forces in his home

village fearing that he will be attacked for having supported or helped

these enemy troops.

9. Please pass Assistaht SecState Marshall Green and DCI Helms.
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